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OPINION

PER CURIAM:

Leslie S. Sprinkle was convicted of embezzling funds from local
322 of the International Alliance of Theatrical Stage Employees
(IATSE) while he was business agent for the union in violation of 29
U.S.C. § 501(c) (1994), as well as bank fraud, 18 U.S.C. § 1344
(1994). He appeals his 21-month sentence of imprisonment, alleging
that the district court misapplied the sentencing guideline in determin-
ing the amount of loss. United States Sentencing Commission,
Guidelines Manual, § 2B1.1(b) (Nov. 1995). Finding no error, we
affirm.

As business agent for the union from 1990 to 1994, Sprinkle nego-
tiated employment contracts for the union members, received pay-
ments from the employers and, with the union financial secretary, had
access to the payroll account. In December 1991, Sprinkle opened a
money market account for IATSE Local 322 (Theatrical Employees)
at the same bank where the union maintained its payroll account. He
initially deposited $10,000 of the union's money into the money mar-
ket account ostensibly to earn extra interest. After a few months,
Sprinkle began depositing money paid for union members' work into
the money market account. In May 1992, Sprinkle changed the name
of the account to Theatrical Employees Special Account. By the end
of January 1994, Sprinkle had deposited checks payable to the union
totaling $207,522 into the special account. Of that amount, $101,103
was disbursed on behalf of the union, while about $104,000 was dis-
bursed on behalf of Sprinkle. About $30,000 was disbursed to Sprin-
kle in 1992 and about $70,000 was disbursed to him in 1993. Sprinkle
reported income of $45,000 in 1992 and $54,000 in 1993. He
acknowledged at trial that most of the reported income on his 1992
and 1993 returns was earned by his wife.

Sprinkle testified at trial that he closed the union money market
account in May 1992 and opened a personal account, and that by mis-
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take the original account number and tax identification number con-
tinued to be used by the bank. He said he began a private business
called Theatrical Stage Employees in 1992, which was not incorpo-
rated and had no tax identification number. He testified that in 1993
he changed the name of his business to Stage Services, Incorporated.
Sprinkle testified that the money he used for himself from the special
account was either the 3% commission he had earned for negotiating
contracts, or was extra pay he had negotiated for himself from the
production companies which employed the union members, or was
reimbursement for expenses or for cash payments he had personally
made to union members for work they performed. He said he had
reported the extra income on his tax returns. However, the prosecutor
introduced copies of Sprinkle's 1992 and 1993 tax returns, which
showed no extra business income. Sprinkle then said he had recently
filed amended returns. Although one of two FBI agents who inter-
viewed him during the investigation had previously testified that
Sprinkle admitted taking the money because he was experiencing
financial difficulties, Sprinkle denied making such a statement.

Sprinkle presented expert testimony from Lewis McKnight, an
accountant and auditor who "tested" certain samples of the transac-
tions in the account and concluded that no fraud had occurred. Mc-
Knight admitted that he accepted Sprinkle's representation that the
special account was an account he maintained for his personal busi-
ness. Another witness for Sprinkle was Richard Pope, an accountant
who prepared the union's 1993 tax return. Pope concluded that the
only loss the union could report on its tax return as a result of Sprin-
kle's conduct was $6884 in "theft loss," because the $67,919 Sprinkle
paid to himself came from "fees from clients" which was "reimburse-
ment for wages, payroll taxes," and the like, none of which was
intended to produce revenue for the union.

After Sprinkle's conviction, the probation officer calculated a loss
of $94,3101 and recommended an eight-level enhancement under
USSG § 2B1.1(b)(1) (loss between $70,000 and $120,000). Sprinkle
made no objection to the loss calculation. At sentencing, the district
court questioned whether the union had suffered any loss, but ulti-
mately decided that the probation officer's calculation was correct.
_________________________________________________________________
1 The union was reimbursed $10,000 by its bonding company.
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Although Sprinkle did not object to the loss enhancement, the issue
was raised by the court at sentencing and argued perfunctorily by the
parties. Consequently, it appears that the district court's decision
should be reviewed for clear error rather than for plain error. In an
embezzlement case, the district court need only make a reasonable
estimate of the loss, given the available information. USSG § 2B1.1,
comment. (n.3).

Sprinkle argues that the enhancement was not warranted because
there was no evidence that the union lost any money at all, much less
an amount over $7000, the amount accountant Pope said the union
could claim as a loss on its 1993 tax return. The question is how much
Sprinkle took in excess of what he was authorized to be paid by the
union in 1992 and 1993. It appears reasonably clear that the amount
was over $70,000.

For 1992, Agent Thomure testified that Sprinkle took about
$30,000 from the special account. For 1993, Agent Thomure testified
that Sprinkle took about $70,000 from the special account. Pope states
that the total amount received from employers in 1993 was $418,609.2
Eighteen percent of that amount (the surcharge) would be $275,349.
If Sprinkle earned 3.55% of that amount, he was entitled to $2674.
But Pope shows "disbursements on behalf of Sprinkle" as $67,919.
This was the amount that was "allegedly stolen," as the union
informed Pope, and presumably did not include wages or other pay
which Sprinkle received in the normal manner. His explanation that
he had negotiated extra pay for himself or had reimbursed himself for
cash outlays is far-fetched because the discrepancy is so large.

In addition, the district court was aware that the FBI agent who
interviewed Sprinkle testified that Sprinkle admitted taking money
from the union for his personal benefit without justification. Whether
the loss was suffered by the union or the employers, or both, we are
satisfied that the government showed by a preponderance of the evi-
dence that in 1992 and 1993 Sprinkle paid himself over $70,000 from
the special account which he did not report as income and could not
_________________________________________________________________
2 Sprinkle testified that it was $900,000. Pope's information came from
the union.
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coherently explain at trial. Consequently, the eight-level enhancement
was not clear error.

We therefore affirm the sentence. We dispense with oral argument
because the facts and legal contentions are adequately presented in the
materials before the court and argument would not aid the decisional
process.

AFFIRMED
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